
 
 
 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  Contact:  Jane Creer / Metin Halil 

Committee Administrator 
  Direct : 020-8379-4093 / 4091 
Tuesday, 20th March, 2018 at 7.30 pm  Tel: 020-8379-1000 
Venue:  Conference Room, The Civic Centre, 
Silver Street, Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA 
 

 Ext:  4093 / 4091 
  
  
 E-mail:  jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

             metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
MEMBERS 
Councillors : Toby Simon (Chair), Dinah Barry (Vice-Chair), Jason Charalambous, 
Nick Dines, Ahmet Hasan, Bernadette Lappage, Derek Levy, Anne-Marie Pearce, 
George Savva MBE, Jim Steven, Elif Erbil and Guney Dogan 
 

 
N.B.  Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting 

should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm 
Please note that if the capacity of the room is reached, entry may not be 

permitted. Public seating will be available on a first come first served basis. 
 

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by 
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 19/03/18 

 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any disclosable 

pecuniary, other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to items on 
the agenda. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 20 
FEBRUARY 2018  (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
 To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meetings held on: 

 

 Tuesday 20 February 2018 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/


4. REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, REGENERATION AND 
PLANNING (REPORT NO.180)  (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
 To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Regeneration & 

Planning. 
 

5. 17/03925/FUL - BRIDGE HOUSE, 1 FORTY HILL, ENFIELD, EN2 9HT  
(Pages 9 - 42) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions and completion of 

Section 106 Agreement. 
WARD:  Town 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 
 



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.2.2018 

 

- 329 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON TUESDAY, 20 FEBRUARY 2018 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Toby Simon, Nick Dines, Ahmet Hasan, Bernadette Lappage, 

Derek Levy, Anne-Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE, Jim 
Steven and Elif Erbil 

 
ABSENT Dinah Barry, Jason Charalambous and Peter George 

(Assistant Director – Regeneration & Planning). 
 
OFFICERS: Andy Higham (Head of Development Management), Sharon 

Davidson (Planning Decisions Manager), Kevin Tohill 
(Planning Decisions Manager), David Gittens (Planning 
Decisions Manager), Dominic Millen (Regeneration & 
Environment) and Metin Halil (Secretary).  

  
 
Also Attending: John West, Vice Chair, Conservation Advisory Group 

Approximately 30 members of the public, applicant and 
agent representatives 
 

 
468   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 
Councillor Simon, Chair, welcomed all attendees and explained the order of 
the meeting. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors  Barry, J. 
Charalambous and Peter George (Assistant Director – Regeneration And 
Environment). 
 
 
469   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
470   
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 19 
DECEMBER 2017 AND TUESDAY 23 JANUARY 2018  
 
 
AGREED the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 19 
December 2017 &  23 January 2018 as a correct record. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.2.2018 

 

- 330 - 

 
 
471   
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, REGENERATION AND 
PLANNING (REPORT NO.160)  
 
 
RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Regeneration and Planning. 
 
 
472   
ORDER OF THE AGENDA  
 
 
AGREED that the order of the agenda be amended to accommodate those in 
attendance. The minutes follow the order of the meeting. 
 
 
473   
17/04670/VAR - ALMA ESTATE, EN3  
 
 
NOTED 
1. The introduction by Sharon Davidson, Planning Decisions Manager, 

clarifying the proposal. 
2. Neither TfL nor Network Rail have raised an objection to this application 

but both have objected to the Reserved Matters application 17/04748/RM 
in that both bodies wish to see that part of the site comprising Phase 2 (i) 
reserved for a construction depot required in connection with potential 
works to Ponders End Station and the four tracking of the line in 
association with Crossrail 2 proposals. Therefore, there is an implied 
objection to the principle of the development of Phase 2A(i) and legal 
advice has been sought on the weight that the Council needs to give to the 
objection in determining this application. 

3. Since the report was published, Counsel has further  advised as follows: 
‘neither TfL nor Network Rail objected to the London Borough of Enfield 
(Alma Estate Regeneration) Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) 2016, 
confirmed by the Secretary of State on 15.12.17 which authorised the 
acquisition of land including the triangle of land. 
The justification for the acquisition of the land was part of the case 
presented to the Inspector and Secretary of State, and included substantial 
building proposals in line with the Outline permission(OPP).’ 

4. Planning officers’ response to points raised and members to note the 
following: 

 The absence of objections by Network Rail and TfL to the CPO 

 The absence of objections by Network Rail and TfL to the OPP 

 The justification for the acquisition of the triangle site advanced by 
the Council in the recent Alma Estate CPO inquiry and accepted by 
the Secretary of State. 

Page 2



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.2.2018 

 

- 331 - 

 The GLA had confirmed no objection and that the application does 
not raise any strategic planning issues further to those previously 
considered in respect of the outline application. 

 One further objection from Mr D South, and the objections raised: 
a. When Phase 1A was granted planning permission, he was never 

made aware at all workshops that outline planning for Phase 2A 
had been included. 

b. The main objection to Phase 2A is no social housing has been 
included. The builders are trying to merge phase 1A and 2A to 
overcome this. 

c. Negotiations took place on Phase 1A regarding a community 
chest that had taken months to conclude. If the two phases are 
merged, the community loses a chest for Phase 2 (still to be 
negotiated) and the Council will lose out on a section 106 
payment themselves. 

5. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. 
6. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set 
out in the report and completion of a Deed of Variation to the Section 106 
agreement. 
 
 
 
474   
17/04748/RM - ALMA ESTATE, EN3  
 
 
NOTED 
1. The introduction by Sharon Davidson, Planning Decisions Manager, 

clarifying the proposal. 
2. Legal advice on Network Rail and TfL objection as set out and reported 

under item 6 (17/04670/VAR). 
3. Objection from Mr D. South as set out and reported under item 6 

(17/04670/VAR). 
4. The deputation of Ricky Powell (Chair – Alma Road Residents 

Association). 
5. The response of Tricia Patel, Agents – Pollard Thomas Edwards. 
6. Planning officers’ response to points raised. 
7. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. 
8. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set 
out in the report with the final wording delegated to officers and to be issued 
following completion of a Deed of Variation to the Section 106 agreement. 
 
 
 
475   
17/04816/FUL - FALCON ROAD SPUR, EN3 4LX  

Page 3



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.2.2018 

 

- 332 - 

 
 
NOTED 
1. The introduction by Sharon Davidson, Planning Decisions Manager, 

clarifying the proposal. 
2. Planning officers’ response to points raised. 
3. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. 
4. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set 
out in the report with the final wording delegated to officers and completion of 
a Deed of Variation to the Section 106 agreement. 
 
 
476   
15/04916/FUL - 20 AND REAR OF 18 - 22 WAGGON ROAD, BARNET EN4 
- SUPPLEMENTARY PAPER  
 
 
NOTED 
 

1. The introduction by Andy Higham, Head – Development Control, 
clarifying the application, that was originally reported at the 27 June 
2017 Planning Committee. 

2. This application was originally reported to a meeting of the Planning 
Committee on 27 June 2017. At that meeting members resolved to 
defer the decision as they were concerned that the proposed 
development to provide 4 additional dwellings was to make no 
contribution towards Affordable Housing. The application was 
considered acceptable in all other respects. 

3. At the meeting of the Planning Committee on 19 December 2017, 
officers provided an update on the viability for this proposed 
development following the completion of a second independent viability 
review. This second review confirmed the scheme could not support 
any up front affordable housing contribution. It was recommended that 
the Council should seek agreement to a deferred contributions 
mechanism, based on outturn costs and values, so that if 
improvements in viability result in a profit being generated, this could 
trigger the payment of affordable housing contributions. 

4. Following discussions, the Agent has confirmed that the Applicants 
have agreed to a contribution of £80k, to be made upon 
commencement of the development. 

5. Given the independent viability assessments, it is considered that the 
offer based on the accepted scheme viability is reasonable. 

6. The Committee voted on the proposal to approve the officer 
recommendation – 7 votes in favour, 2 against 

 
AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to conditions and 
Section 106 agreement. 
 

Page 4



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.2.2018 

 

- 333 - 

 
477   
17/02541/FUL - SOCIAL CLUB, 97 ORDNANCE ROAD, ENFIELD EN3 6AG  
 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by David Gittens, Planning Decisions Manager. 
2. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. 
3. Members requested amendment to Condition 23 to require submission of 

a Community Use Strategy to ensure the re-provided social club fulfils a 
wider community need within use class D, and use in accordance with that 
strategy. 

4. The support of the majority of the committee for the officers’ 
recommendation: 8 votes for, 1 vote against. 

 
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set 
out in the report and amendment to Condition 23. 
 
 
 
478   
17/03256/RE4 - CHURCH STREET TENNIS COURTS, GREAT 
CAMBRIDGE ROAD, LONDON N9 9HL  
 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by Kevin Tohill, Planning Decisions Manager. 
2. This item was considered alongside Item 7 – 17/04488/RE4. 
3. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. 
4. Following late representation from the Environment Agency in relation to 

environmental and flooding conditions, delegated authority be granted to 
the Head of Development Management to finalise conditions for deemed 
consent, in accordance with Regulation 4 of the Town and Country 
Planning General Regulations 1992.  

5. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be deemed to be granted, subject to the 
conditions set out in the report, Environment Agency conditions and a 
condition regarding details of boundary treatment. 
 
Reason:  Members concerns about the appearance of the wire mesh fence 
proposed notwithstanding the landscaping and the limited benefit towards 
noise attenuation. Discussion focussed on a more substantial structure, 
possibly a wall which would attenuate noise and visible screen the A10. 
 
Note: It was requested that when details pursuant to this condition are 
submitted to be discharged, Chair, Vice Chair, Opposition Lead and Cllr 
Lappage to be consulted. 

Page 5



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.2.2018 

 

- 334 - 

 
 
479   
17/04488/RE4 - FIRS FARM PLAYING FIELDS, FIRS LANE, LONDON N21 
2PJ  
 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by Kevin Tohill, Planning Decisions Manager. 
2. Considered alongside Item 6 – 17/03256/FUL 
3. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers, including the re-

positioning of the existing football pitch and the loss of 14 tennis courts. 
4. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be deemed to be granted, subject to the 
conditions set out in the report. 
 
 
 
480   
17/04615/FUL - DEIMEL FABRIC CO. LTD, PARK AVENUE, LONDON N18 
2UH  
 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by Kevin Tohill, Planning Decisions Manager. 
2. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set 
out in the report and completion of Section 106 Agreement. 
 
 
481   
NEXT MEETING  
 
 
NOTED 
 
 
1. It was expected that two committee meetings would be required in March: 

Thursday 1 March 2018 and Tuesday 20 March 2018. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



  

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 - REPORT NO  180 
 

 
COMMITTEE: 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
20.03.2018 
 
REPORT OF: 
Assistant Director, Regeneration 
and Planning 
 
Contact Officer: 
Planning Decisions Manager 
David Gittens Tel: 020 8379 8074 
Kevin Tohill Tel: 020 8379 5508 
 
4.1 APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF 
 
4.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 304 applications were determined 

between 07/02/2018 and 08/03/2018, of which 216 were granted and 88 
refused. 

 
4.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library. 
 

Background Papers 
 
To be found on files indicated in Schedule. 

 
4.2 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY 

ADVERTISEMENTS  DEC 
 
 On the Schedules attached to this report I set out my recommendations in 

respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements.  I 
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations 
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting. 

 
 Background Papers 
 

(1) Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the 
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations.  Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by 
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making 
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the 
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the London 
Plan (March 2015), the Core Strategy (2010) and the Development 
Management Document (2014) together with other supplementary 
documents identified in the individual reports. 

 
(2) Other background papers are those contained within the file, the 

reference number of which is given in the heading to each application. 

ITEM 4 AGENDA - PART 1 

SUBJECT - 
 

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 
 
 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 
Date : 20 March 2018 

 
Report of 
Assistant Director, 
Regeneration & Planning 
 

 
Contact Officer: 
Andy Higham   
Sharon Davidson 
Ms Claire Williams   
Tel No: 0208 379 4372 

 
Ward:  
Town 
 

 
Ref: 17/03925/FUL 
 

 
Category: Full Application 

 
LOCATION:  Bridge House, 1 Forty Hill, Enfield, EN2 9HT 
 
 
 
PROPOSAL:  Redevelopment of site involving demolition of existing building and erection of a part 
single part two storey 75-bed care home with accommodation within the roof, parking and plant at 
basement level together with residential facilities including cafe, cinema and Hair Salon. 
 
 
Applicant Name & Address: 
Mr Harnoop Atkar 
Oakland Primecare  
Regal House 
Royal Crescent 
Ilford 
IG2 7JY 
United Kingdom 
 

 
Agent Name & Address: 
Danny Simmonds 
Planning Director - RPS Planning & Development 
140 London Wall, 
London,  
EC2Y 5DN 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That subject to the completion of a S106 agreement, the Head of 
Development Management/ the Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to GRANT planning 
permission subject to conditions.  
 
 
 
Note for Members: 
 
The application has been brought to the Planning Committee because the land is owned by the 
Council. 
 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



 
Ref: 17/03925/FUL    LOCATION:  Bridge House , 1 Forty Hill, Enfield, EN2 9HT 
 

 

 
 

  

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey 
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and 
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.    
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820 

Scale 1:1250 North 

 

Page 10



2 
 

 
1.0 Site and Surroundings 
 
1.1 The site is a corner plot at the junction of Forty Hill and Myddelton Avenue, 

occupied by a residential care home that is currently closed. The application site 
measures 3,489 square metres and is enclosed with mature trees that are 
protected by virtue of being located within the Forty Hill Conservation Area.  

 
1.2 To the east of the site is a row of two storey cottages and shops with flats above. 

The closest dwelling is No.11 Forty Hill which has been extended to the rear. To 
the south of the site is a two storey building that accommodates two residential 
units, No’s 18 and 20 Myddelton Avenue. To the north, on the opposite side of the 
road is Gough Park which is located within the Green Belt. To the north east of the 
site on the opposite side of the road, planning permission was granted in 2014 at 
No’s 22 – 68 Forty Hill for the demolition of the existing buildings and erection of a 
part two storey part three storey block of 9 residential units with rooms in the roof 
and front dormer windows (under ref. no. P13-02587LBE).  

 
1.3 The site is located within the Forty Hill Conservation Area and falls within a site of 

archaeological interest.  
 

 
2.0 Proposal 
 
2.1 The applicant is Oakland Primecare who operate and provide nursing and 

residential care in England for a range of different needs but predominantly 
continuing care for frail, older people and those with age related dementia.  
 

2.2 Planning permission was originally sought for the redevelopment of the site 
involving the demolition of the existing building and the erection of two detached 
buildings comprising, part 3, part 4-storey 69-bed care home with mansard roof, 
plant at basement level together with residential facilities including cafe, cinema 
and Hair Salon and  a 3 storey block with mansard roof to provide 12 close care 
self-contained flats  (6 x1bed and 6 x2 bed) with associated car parking. However 
changes to the scheme have been made as set out in paragraph 2.3 of the report. 
Planning permission is now sought for the redevelopment of site involving 
demolition of the existing building and erection of a part single part two storey 75-
bed care home with accommodation within the roof, parking and plant at basement 
level together with residential facilities including cafe, cinema and hair salon. 

 
 

Page 11



3 
 

2.3 Changes to the original scheme include:  
 

• Removal of the building that comprised the 12 extra care apartments.  
• Increase in the number of bedrooms within the care home from 69 to 75.  
• Reduction in height of the building and the introduction of a staggered height to 

the building from No.11 Forty Hill towards Myddleton Avenue.  
• Re-siting of the building and reduction in size of the building footprint.  
• Increase in distance between the eastern boundary of the site and the new 

building to reduce the impact on the residential amenity of the occupants of no.11 
Forty Hill, to create more of a relief and improve the relationship with No. 11 and 
the change in height of the building along Forty Hill.  

• Increase in the distance between the western boundary of the site and the new 
building to reduce the impact on the existing trees on the site.  

• Retention of good quality trees on the site.  
• Change in roof form from a mansard roof to pitched and gable end roof forms.  
• Vertical emphasis on the elevations introduced to include stone cills and heads. 
• Glazing introduced to the stairwell to the north western corner of the building to 

break up the extent of brick, bring light into the building and let people look out of 
the building.  

• Improvements to the front entrance of the care home through the use of open 
glazed sections. 

• Increase in the number of parking spaces from 16 to 19 
 
2.4 The building would be ‘T’ shaped and would measure a maximum height of 12.5 

metres and a maximum width and depth of 53 metres. The building would be two 
storey with accommodation provided within the roof through the use of eaves level 
dormers and gabled elements.  
 

2.5 The side elevation facing Forty Hill would be set back from this boundary by 
approximately 1.6 metres when taken from the stairwell, 7.8 metres from the rear 
section when taken at the point closest to No.11 Forty Hill and 17.5 metres when 
taken to approximately the centre of the building. The single storey aspect of the 
building closest to No.11 Forty Hill would be set in from the boundary with this 
neighbour by approximately 1.8 – 3 metres and set in by approximately 6 metres at 
first floor level. The section of the building closest to the southern boundary would 
be set in from the common boundary with No. 18 – 20 Myddelton Avenue by 
approximately 4 metres. The rear elevation of the building with a frontage to Forty 
Hill would be set in from this boundary by between approximately 10 and 15 
metres.  

 

Page 12



4 
 

2.6 A total of 17 car parking spaces would be provided within the proposed basement. 
Two additional disabled parking spaces would be sited to the front of the site at 
ground level, accessed from Forty Hill. The bin and cycle store is proposed to be 
located along the common boundary with No.11 Forty Hill.   

 
2.7 The existing low level brick wall along Forty Hill would be made good, the existing 

higher brick wall would be replaced with 1.8 metre high railings and 1.8 metre high 
timber fencing would be sited to the rear and the side boundary with No. 11 Forty 
Hill.  

 
2.8 The Conservation Advisory Group (CAG) and the Conservation Officer have raised 

concerns with the siting of the building along the northern boundary – with 
particular attention raised to the stair core and the use of slate to pitched roofs as 
the roofs look too steep to accommodate slate. There are also outstanding 
concerns about the position of the refuse storage area adjacent to No.11 Forty Hill. 
Further discussions are taking place with the applicant/ agent and Members will be 
updated at the meeting on these matters.  

 
 
3.0  Relevant Planning History 
 

Application site  
 
3.1  LBE/66/0026 – ELDERLY PERSONS HOME - Approved 18.07.1966 and 

implemented. Care home currently closed.  
 
 22 – 68 Forty Hill 
 
3.2  P13-02587LBE - Demolition of existing building and erection of a part 2-storey, part 

3-storey block of 9 residential units (comprising 2 x 3-bed, 6x 4-bed terraced 
houses and 1 x 3-bed maisonette) with rooms in roof and front dormer windows, 
undercroft access and off street parking at rear. – S106 Granted with conditions on 
22 September 2014. Works have recently commenced on site.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



5 
 

4.0  Consultation 
 
4.1  Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees:  
 
4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation:  
 

No objection. The number of parking spaces and the revised access for service 
vehicles and tracking proposed is acceptable and justified. Further details on the 
pedestrian access will be required. Conditions suggested.  

 
4.1.2 Conservation Officer: 
 

No objection to the demolition of the existing building. In response to the revised 
scheme the Conservation Officer has confirmed that the revised scheme is a 
significant improvement in terms of the scale, massing and design. Revisions have 
been suggested in terms of the siting of the building particularly to the north of the 
site with particular reference to the stair core and the balconies. Concerns were 
also raised with regard to the first floor level glazed doors and the triple height 
glazing to the stair core as it appears out of keeping with the scale, proportions and 
detailing of the building. Several conditions have been suggested relating to brick 
sample panels, detailed drawings of the proposed windows and doors, chimney 
stacks and proposed dormers if minded to approve.   

 
Discussions are ongoing with the agent/ applicant to address these residual issues 
and Members will be updated at the meeting.  

 
4.1.3 Conservation Advisory Group: 
 
 Concerns raised with the siting of the building along the northern boundary – 

particularly the stair core, the use of slate to pitched roofs as the roofs look too 
steep to accommodate slate and the level of screening to be provided along the 
boundaries. The CAG requested that information on materials go back to the group 
for review.  

 
 It is recommended that a condition be attached requiring the submission of 

external finishing materials and these can be taken to CAG when the discharge of 
condition applications are submitted.   

 
 
 
 

Page 14



6 
 

 
4.1.4 Urban Design Officer: 
 
 No objection following the revisions to the scheme. Suggested change to the 

boundary treatment plan so that the 1800mm section of railing terminates and 
returns to meet the north west corner of the building, allowing the gable end to 
provide the secure line adjacent to the stairwell and vehicle entrance. Several 
conditions are suggested relating to details of the external finishing materials and 
the cycle store.  

 
4.1.5 Environmental Health 
 

 No objection.  
 
4.1.6 Tree Officer 
 

Originally raised an objection to the scheme due to the impact on the existing trees 
on the site. However changes to the scheme have been made and the Tree Officer 
no longer raises an objection to the scheme subject to conditions.  

 
4.1.7 SuDS Officer 
 

Originally raised an objection to the scheme due to the lack of a site specific flood 
risk assessment and the insufficient information within the drainage strategy to 
ensure that there would be no safety implications for the vulnerable occupants of 
the care home.  

 
An updated FRA/ drainage document has been requested that includes 
confirmation of the information set out in the bullet points below. Subject to receipt 
of this confirmation, a SuDS strategy condition would be required.  

 
• Source control SuDS measures (such as permeable paving, rain gardens, green 

roofs and rain planters) will be used for roof runoff and hardstanding areas (to 
ensure the development follows the SuDS Management Train) 

• Above ground attenuation will be maximised before below ground attenuation is 
utilised (in line with the London Plan Drainage Hierarchy) 

• Greenfield runoff rates will be achieved for 1 in 1 year and 1 in 100 year (plus 
climate change) events OR Qbar 

• The landscaping strategy will be revised to reflect the SuDS Strategy 
 

Page 15



7 
 

Members will be provided with an update at the meeting.    
 

4.1.8 Design Out Crime Officer 
 

Requested that the proposal be designed to achieve Secure by Design 
accreditation and an informative for the applicant to seek advice from the 
Metropolitan Police Service Designing Out Crime Officers. An informative would be 
attached to any permission.  

 
4.1.9 Waste Services 
 

 No comments.  
 
4.1.10 Health and Adult Social Care Services 
 

Made the following comments: ‘No objection based on the overarching need for 
nursing care provision in the borough. Reassurance that placements are sought 
from the local area would be useful as Local Authority utilisation would not occur 
due to the high service costs intended.  

 
The design should meet HAPPI Design Principles and Lifetime Homes standards 
as a very minimum, and be fully DDA compliant’. 

 
 Lifetime Homes standards no longer exists. Building Regulations optional standard 

M4(2) is the equivalent of Lifetime Homes Standard however this relates to 
dwellings only. The care home would need to accord with Part M volume 2 of the 
building regulations.  

 
The Design and Access Statement sets out that the care home would be in 
accordance with the Care Quality Commission standards which includes standards 
relating to safeguarding and safety that covers the safety and suitability of 
premises. Confirmation has been sought of whether the proposal would be fully 
DDA compliant. Members will be updated at the Planning Committee. 

 
4.1.11GLAAS 
 

 No objection. A condition to require a two stage process of archaeological 
investigation and an informative has been suggested.  

 
 
 

Page 16



8 
 

 
4.1.12 Thames Water 
 

No objection because the surface water discharge to public sewers through 
existing connections will not exceed 2.5l/s as stated in the Drainage Strategy dated 
August 2017. Informatives and a piling condition have been suggested.  

 
4.1.13 Sustainability Team 
 

The development is too far away to connect to the Ponders End Heat Network. No 
plans to supply low carbon heating and hot water in this area due to the low density 
of development. A decentralised heating system local to the development with 
CHP would not be economical for this type of development.  

 
 
4.2 Public 
 
4.2.1 Letters were sent to 229 adjoining and nearby residents on the original and the 

latest revised scheme. A press notice was published in the local paper and site 
notices were posted.  
 

4.2.2 Five responses were received to the consultation undertaken for the original 
scheme and concerns were raised relating to loss of privacy, loss of light, the 
scheme being out of keeping with the Conservation Area, inadequate parking 
provision and access, increase in traffic, overdevelopment, proximity to site 
boundaries, impact and loss of trees, impact of the basement construction on 
neighbouring properties, opportunities for criminal activity and the development 
being too high.  
 

4.2.3 Along with consultee comments, the comments received from members of the 
public have been taken into consideration and the scheme amended to seek to 
address the concerns raised.  

 
4.2.4 With regard to the impact of the construction of the basement on neighbouring 

properties, the new development would need to accord with the building 
regulations which are standards for the design and construction of buildings to 
ensure the health and safety of people in and around buildings. An informative 
would be attached to any permission for the applicant to seek advice from the 
Metropolitan Police Service Designing Out Crime Officers regarding Secure by 
Design principles. 
 

Page 17



9 
 

4.2.5 The adjoining and nearby residents have been consulted on the latest revised 
scheme and no comments have been received to date. However the consultation 
period had not expired at the time of writing (expires 14 March 2018) and therefore 
Members will be updated at the meeting if any further comments are received.  

 
 
5.0  Relevant Planning Policies  
 
5.1  London Plan (2016) 
 

3.1  Ensuring Life Chances for All 
3.9  Mixed and Balanced Communities 
3.16  Protection and Enhancement of Social Infrastructure 
3.17  Health and Social Care Facilities  
5.1   Climate change mitigation 
5.2   Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 
5.3   Sustainable design and construction 
5.7   Renewable energy 
5.12 Flood Risk Management 
5.13  Sustainable Drainage 
5.14  Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure  
5.15  Water Use and Supplies 
5.16  Waste Self Sufficiency 
6.3    Assessing Effects of Development on Transport Capacity 
6.9  Cycling 
6.10  Walking 
6.11  Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion 
6.12  Road Network Capacity  
6.13 Parking 
7.1   Building London’s Neighbours and Communities 
7.3   Designing out Crime  
7.4   Local Character 
7.5   Public Realm 
7.6   Architecture 
7.8   Heritage Assets and Archaeology  
7.15 Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes 
7.18 Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency 
7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature 
7.21 Trees and Woodland 
8.2 Planning Obligations 
8.3 Community Infrastructure Levy  

Page 18



10 
 

5.2  The London Plan – Draft for Public Consultation December 2017 
 

A draft London Plan was published on 29 November 2017 for consultation 
purposes with a deadline for consultation of 2 March 2018. The aim is for the 
plan to be examined in autumn 2018 and published a year later. The draft plan is 
a material consideration in determining applications but is likely to carry little or 
no weight until there is a response to consultation submissions or until after its 
examination. There are a number of proposed changes relevant to this 
application but none of these proposed changes would result in a different 
conclusion in relation to this application. Of relevance are: 

 
Policy H15 provides clarity on what types of older persons housing will be 
considered use class C3 or C2 - Sheltered accommodation and extra care 
accommodation is considered as being in Use Class C3. Residential nursing care 
accommodation is considered as being in Use Class C2.  

 
Policy D11 is introduced requiring specific information to be submitted in a fire 
statement alongside all major applications to ensure fire safety. 

 
 
5.3  Core Strategy (2010) 
 

   Core Policy 6 - Meeting Particular Housing Needs 
   Core Policy 7 - Health and Social Care Facilities and the Wider Determinants of 

Health 
   Core Policy 9 - Supporting Community Cohesion 

Core Policy 20 - Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure 
Core Policy 24 - The Road Network 
Core Policy 25 – Pedestrians and Cyclists  
Core Policy 28 - Managing Flood Risk through Development 
Core Policy 29 - Flood management infrastructure 
Core Policy 30 - Maintaining and Improving the Quality of the Built and Open 

Environment 
Core Policy 31 - Built and landscape heritage 
Core Policy 32 – Pollution  
Core Policy 36 – Biodiversity 
Core Policy 46 – Infrastructure Contribution  

 
 
 
 

Page 19



11 
 

5.4  Development Management Document (2014) 
 

   DMD10 – Distancing  
   DMD15 - Specialist Housing Needs 
   DMD16 – Provision of New Community Facilities  

DMD37 - Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 
DMD45 - Parking Standards and Layout 
DMD46 - Vehicle crossovers and dropped kerbs  
DMD47 - Access, New Roads and Servicing  
DMD 48 - Transport assessments, travel plans, servicing & delivery plans  
DMD53 - Low and Zero Carbon Technology 
DMD57 - Responsible Sourcing of Materials, Waste Minimisation and Green 

Procurement 
DMD58 - Water Efficiency  
DMD59 - Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk 
DMD61 - Managing Surface Water 
DMD63 - Protection and improvement of watercourses and flood defences 
DMD64 - Pollution control and assessment 
DMD68 - Noise 
DMD69 - Light Pollution 
DMD79 - Ecological Enhancements 
DMD80 - Trees on development sites 
DMD81 - Landscaping  

 
5.5  Other Policy 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF)  
National Planning Practice Guidance 2016 (NPPG) 
Forty Hill Conservation Area Character Appraisal (2015) 
Section 106 Supplementary Planning Document (adopted November 2016) 
Manual for Streets 1 and 2 
 
 

6.0  Analysis 
 
6.1  This report sets out an analysis of the issues that arise from the proposals in the 

light of adopted strategic and local planning policies. The main issues are 
considered as follows: 

 
• Principle of development  
• Design, appearance and impact on the Conservation Area 

Page 20



12 
 

• Trees and landscaping 
• Traffic and transport 
• Flood Risk  

 
 Principle of Development 
 
6.2  Policy 3.4 of the London Plan promotes the optimisation of housing output within 

different types of location. Policy 3.8 of the London Plan also encourages the 
Council to provide a range of housing choices in order to take account of the 
various different groups who require different types of housing.  

 
6.3  Policy 6 of the Council’s Core Strategy sets out the Council’s guiding principles for 

meeting particular housing needs, and states: 
 
 “The Council, with its partners, will develop flexible and accessible accommodation 

services that meet the local housing needs of vulnerable adults and that support 
the delivery of the Personalisation Agenda. Future accommodation requirements 
will be set out in the emerging Health and Adult Social Care commissioning 
strategies. These strategies should be used as a tool for shaping and informing 
future development in the Borough. There is a particular need to control the 
development of traditional residential care home provision and align the 
development of supported accommodation services with local need. 

 
 The Council will work to ensure that there is appropriate provision of specialist 

accommodation across all tenures. Criteria for assessing applications for housing 
to meet particular needs, having regard to need and supply will be set out in the 
Development Management Document.” 

 
6.4  Furthermore, Policy DMD15 of the Council’s adopted Development Management 

Document refers to specialist housing needs, and states that: 
 
 “Development proposals for specialist forms of housing would only be permitted if 

all of the following criteria are met: 
 

a. The development would meet an identified borough need for that form of 
specialist housing having regard to evidence of need in the Council’s Market 
Statement, Health and Adult Social Care Commissioning Strategies, or the needs 
assessment of a recognised public health care body; 

 b. The property is suitable for such a use and would not result in an over intensive 
use of the site 

Page 21



13 
 

 c. That residential amenity is preserved in accordance with the relevant criteria in 
policy DMD 8 'General Standards for New Residential Development'; 

 d. It would not result in an excessive number or concentration of similar uses in a 
locality which would be detrimental to residential character or amenity; 

 e. The development is adaptable, well designed, of a high quality, accessible 
(internally and externally), meets the needs of the specific client groups it serves 
and their carers but is flexible in case these change. Developments must have 
regard 'General Standards for new development', other design considerations and 
local guidance. The Council will work with partners to ensure the facilities provide 
an adequate form of accommodation; and 

 f. The development is well located so that it is easily accessible to existing local 
community facilities, infrastructure and services, such as public transport, health 
services, retail centres, recreation and leisure opportunities.” 

 
6.5  The principle of development for a new care home facility in this location, where 

such a facility previously existed, is acceptable. The Design and Access Statement 
sets out that the existing building is currently closed and to re-use the existing 
development would be extremely difficult as the building needs significant redesign 
and rebuild work to meet the current standards.  

 
6.6  Current experience of the Council in seeking to place service users into residential 

nursing care shows a significant shortage of available accommodation within the 
borough and neighbouring areas, and evidence shows that this shortage is likely to 
continue due to increasing demand. With an increase in the number of older 
people and improvements in overall life expectancy, there is likely to be a growing 
need for care homes in the borough over the next 20 years. Enfield Council’s 
Health and Adult Social Care Services were consulted on the scheme and raised 
no objection to the scheme given the overarching need for nursing care provision 
in the borough. A nomination agreement was not secured with the applicant due to 
the intended high service costs of the original proposal. Health and Adult Social 
Care Services suggested that placements are secured for local people within the 
borough. This has been discussed with the applicant and they have initially advised 
that this would not be feasible as it would result in issues with securing funding and 
pose a significant restraint to the business. However further discussions are taking 
place and we will update Members at the meeting.  

 
6.7  There is no planning policy guidance in place that relates specifically to care home 

standards. However there are bodies in place that regulate care home standards, 
most notably the Care Quality Commission (CQC). It is noted that many of these 
standards clearly relate to operational arrangements which are controlled outside 

Page 22



14 
 

of the planning process, e.g. allowing visitors at reasonable times, varied dietary 
offers, appropriate staffing levels and maintenance. 

 
6.8  In compliance with the CQC standards, accessible toilets would be provided on 

each floor through en-suite facilities, as would communal space for residents. The 
CQC standards dictate that all new-build should incorporate single bedrooms with 
a minimum usable floor space of 12 sqm (excluding en-suite facilities), the 
proposed plans indicate individual room areas that consistently exceed the 12 sqm 
on each floor.    

 
 
 Design and Impact on Character of Forty Hill Conservation Area 
 
6.9 Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy requires new development to be of a high quality 

design and in keeping with the character of the surrounding area. Policy DMD37 
sets out criteria for achieving high quality and design led development.  

 
6.10 Policy CP31 and Policy DMD44 states that when considering development 

proposals affecting heritage assets, regard will be given to the special character 
and those applications for development which fail to conserve and enhance the 
special interest, significance or setting of a heritage asset will normally be refused. 
This approach is consistent with that set out at a national level with the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
6.11 Given its siting within the Forty Hill Conservation Area, consideration should be 

given as to whether the development preserves or enhances the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area.   

 
6.12 In determining planning applications, local planning authorities should take account 

of: 
 
●  The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and 

putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 
●  The positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 

sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and 
●  The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 

character and distinctiveness. 
 
6.13 Furthermore, at Paragraph 132 it states: 
 

Page 23



15 
 

 “When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a 
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be. 
Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage 
asset or development within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any 
harm or loss should require clear and convincing justification.” 

 
6.14  It goes on to state at Paragraph 133 and 134 that: 
 

“Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or total loss of 
significance of a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse 
consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is 
necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or 
all of the following apply: 

 
●  The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and 
● No viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through 

appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and 
●  Conservation by grant-funding or some form of charitable or public ownership is 

demonstrably not possible; and 
●  The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use. 
 

Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against 
the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.” 

 
6.15 The Forty Hill Conservation Area Characterisation Study describes the overall 

Conservation Area as ‘overwhelmingly that of a rural settlement giving way to 
farmland to the north and west’ and ‘it forms the interface between built up 
suburban areas to the south and east and agricultural land to the west and north’. 
The specific section of the Conservation Area to which the application relates 
(Forty Hill) is described in the same document in para 3.8.1 as ‘the most densely 
built-up part of the Conservation Area’. 

 
6.16 The proposal has been amended which has reduced the scale, bulk and massing 

of the scheme compared to the original scheme and improved the overall design. 
The height of the building has been reduced, the roof form has been amended, the 
building footprint has been reduced, there is a stagger in the height of the building 
and a vertical emphasis to the building has been introduced. The Conservation 
Officer and the CAG have suggested further changes to the scheme to include the 
removal of the stair core and balconies. The use of slate to the pitched roofs has 

Page 24



16 
 

also been queried given the proposed pitch of the roofs. To reduce the prominence 
of the stair core within the street and to ensure that it respects the rest of the 
building and the character of the area, a green wall to the stair core has been 
suggested and/ or changes to the glazing to better reflect the proportions of the 
fenestration within the new building. Further discussions are taking place and 
Members will be updated at the meeting.  

 
6.17 The existing building does not have any architectural or historic interest and is 

identified within the Character Appraisal as a building with a negative impact on the 
character of the area. The replacement building has regard to design features of 
buildings within the vicinity of the site and the wider Conservation Area. There 
remain some residual issues to discuss with the applicant, as outlined above, but 
subject to this and with the conditions suggested, it is considered that the proposed 
development would be a betterment that would preserve and enhance the 
character and appearance of the Forty Hill Conservation Area.  

 
6.18 Given the Conservation Area location, the design and detailing of the proposed 

development is extremely important. Conditions are recommended to require the 
submission of sample materials, sample panels through the building and drawings 
to secure details such as brick bond, pointing and mortar mix and window details. 

 
6.19 In summary the proposed development would not harm the character and 

appearance of the Conservation Area. Moreover, it would bring public benefits as it 
would provide a care home that would assist with the significant and increasing 
shortage of available accommodation for elderly vulnerable adults within the 
borough and neighbouring areas.  
 
Impact on Residential Amenity  
 

6.20 Any new development should not impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring 
residents. Policies 7.6 of the London Plan and CP30 of the Core Strategy seek to 
ensure that new developments have appropriate regard to their surroundings, and 
that they improve the environment in terms of residential amenity.  
 

6.21 To maintain a sense of privacy, avoid overshadowing and ensure adequate 
amounts of sunlight are available for new and existing developments; Policy 
DMD10 requires new development to maintain certain distances between 
buildings, unless it can be demonstrated that the proposed development would not 
result in housing with inadequate daylight/ sunlight or privacy for the proposed or 
surrounding development. 
 

Page 25



17 
 

6.22 Policy DMD10 requires a minimum distance between windows and side 
boundaries of 11 metres and a minimum distance of 25 metres between rear facing 
windows for 2 – 3 storey buildings. The section of the building closest to the 
southern boundary would be set in from the common boundary with No. 18 – 20 
Myddelton Avenue by approximately 4 metres and contains no windows. The 
elevation facing the rear of properties on Myddelton Avenue and Adelaide Close 
would be set in from this boundary by approximately 10 – 15 metres. The rear 
gardens of 1 – 4 Adelaide Close measure approximately 18 metres in depth. The 
proposal would be in accordance with Policy DMD10. Given the scale and siting of 
the building there would not be any demonstrable harm to the occupants of 18 – 20 
Myddelton Avenue or 1 – 4 Adelaide Close in terms of loss of light and privacy.  

 
6.23 Whilst applicable to householder extensions, Policy DMD11 nevertheless 

establishes the basis for assessment of the impact of development on the light and 
outlook to neighbouring properties. Policy DMD11 requires that ground floor rear 
extensions do not exceed a 45 degree line as taken from the centre of the 
adjoining ground floor windows and that first floor rear extensions do not exceed a 
30 degree line as taken from the centre of the adjoining first floor windows. 

 
6.24 The single storey aspect of the building closest to No.11 Forty Hill would be set in 

from the boundary with this neighbour by approximately 1.8 – 3 metres and set in 
by approximately 6 metres at first floor level. 

 
6.25 The distance between the building and the shared boundary with No.11 has been 

increased and the building has also been staggered in height so that the section of 
the building closest to No.11 would be single storey and then it would increase in 
height to two storeys. The two storey element has also been reduced in height and 
the roof aspect changed to reduce the bulk of the building and in turn the impact on 
No.11. Although there would be an intrusion into the 45 and 30 degree splay lines 
there would be sufficient space between the new building and No.11 to ensure that 
there would be no undue harm to the occupants of this dwelling. Furthermore a 
daylight and sunlight assessment has been submitted with the application and 
confirms that the proposal would not result in any undue harm to the neighbouring 
property No.11 in terms of loss of sunlight and daylight and overshadowing to their 
rear garden or habitable rooms.  

 
6.26 The refuse store is currently proposed to be sited along the common boundary with 

No.11. To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupants of No.11 in terms of 
smells and general disturbance a condition will be attached requiring the refuse bin 
to be relocated within the site. 
 

Page 26



18 
 

 
Traffic and Transportation 

 
6.27 The London Plan, Core Strategy and DMD encourage and advocate sustainable 

modes of travel and require that each development should be assessed on its 
respective merits and requirements, in terms of the level of parking spaces to be 
provided for example. 
 

6.28 Policy DMD45 requires parking to be incorporated into schemes having regard to 
the parking standards of the London Plan; the scale and nature of the 
development; the public transport accessibility (PTAL) of the site; existing parking 
pressures in the locality; and accessibility to local amenities and the needs of the 
future occupants of the developments. 

 
6.29 The London Plan does not give prescriptive parking standards for care homes; the 

guidance is to ensure any provision is justified for operational needs. The 
Transport Assessment included with the application addresses this by providing 
the expected number of trips generated to and from the site.  

 
6.30 Objections have been received that relate to inadequate parking. The 12 one and 

two bed close care self-contained flats have been removed from the scheme which 
would reduce the demand for parking on the site. A total of 19 parking spaces are 
proposed, with 17 spaces proposed to be located within the basement and two 
disabled parking spaces on the ground level. Access to the underground spaces 
will include a traffic light system to control vehicular movements on the access 
ramp. There would be a maximum number of 24 members of staff on site during 
the day and 5 members of staff at night. Parking accumulation figures have been 
provided using the TRICS database which suggests the maximum level of parking 
accumulated would be 16 parking spaces during the weekend and 8 parking 
spaces on a weekday – this included trips throughout the day thus including both 
staff and visitors. T&T have confirmed that with a total of 19 parking spaces to be 
provided the number of parking spaces proposed would be acceptable and 
consequently would not result in excessive on street parking.  

 
6.31 Policy DMD47 states that new development will only be permitted if the access and 

road junction which serves the development is appropriately sited and is of an 
appropriate scale and configuration and there is no adverse impact on highway 
safety and the free flow of traffic.  

 
6.32 Two vehicular accesses are proposed from Forty Hill. T&T have confirmed that the 

vehicle parking layout and access is acceptable. The revised parking spaces within 

Page 27



19 
 

the basement are accessible and the replacement 1.8 metre railings along Forty 
Hill will maintain visibility around the access. 

 
6.33 The pedestrian access would be sited to the north east of the site and lead to the 

main entrance of the building. There are discrepancies between the proposed site 
plans and the landscaping – clarification has been sought. An enclosure condition 
will be required that seeks further details on the pedestrian access and how it 
relates to the parking spaces and the vehicular access to the north east of the site 
as there will need to be some sort of a low level boundary treatment such as a wall 
between the pedestrian access and the disabled parking bays to prevent cars from 
driving onto the pedestrian access. 

 
6.34 With regard to servicing, the access for servicing vehicles has been revised and 

the tracking for a medium vehicle provided. The tracking plans confirm that a 9 
metre long refuse vehicle can reverse into the site. There are discrepancies 
between the site plans and the landscaping plan in terms of the parking layout – 
the angle of the bays are slightly different. Confirmation has been sought that the 
parking layout shown on the site plans would be retained as the arrangement 
shown on the landscaping plan has a tighter turning and would therefore need 
further testing to confirm it could accommodate an 11m vehicle. With this 
confirmation the landscaping plan would need to be superseded. Members will be 
updated on this matter at the meeting.  

 
6.35 The Design and Access Statement sets out that ten cycle parking spaces would be 

provided which would be acceptable given a maximum number of 24 members of 
staff would be on site during the day. The location of the refuse store and cycle 
spaces have been provided but full details have not been provided and therefore 
conditions would be required. 

 
6.36 A Travel Plan will be secured through a planning condition and a Travel Plan 

monitoring fee of £3,620 through a Section 106 Agreement to encourage staff and 
visitors to travel sustainably and monitor parking demand.  

 
 

Flooding 
 
6.37 Policy DMD59 states that new development must avoid and reduce the risk of 

flooding, and not increase the risk elsewhere. Policy DMD61 states that a Drainage 
Strategy will be required for all development to demonstrate how proposed 
measures manage surface water as close to its source as possible and follow the 
drainage hierarchy in the London Plan. 

Page 28



20 
 

 
6.38 A drainage strategy has been submitted however there are no source control 

SuDS measures and no details setting out how the proposed measures manage 
surface water as close to its source as possible and follows the drainage hierarchy 
in line with the London Plan. There is surface water flood risk on the site and 
therefore it is important that measures are taken to ensure that the residents are 
safe from flooding.  

 
6.39 An updated FRA/ drainage document has been requested that includes 

confirmation that source control SuDS measures will be incorporated, greenfield 
runoff rates will be achieved for 1 in 1 year (plus climate change) events Qbar and 
the landscaping strategy will reflect the SuDS strategy. The proposal does not 
demonstrate how SuDs will be used and maximised on site to provide storage for 
surface water generated on site in line with Policy DMD59 or the NPPF. Subject to 
receipt of this confirmation, a SuDS strategy condition would be required. Members 
will be provided with an update at the meeting.    

 
6.40 A £17,000 financial contribution has been suggested to help improve the access 

and entrance to Gough Park. Gough Park is located directly opposite the proposed 
development, and is therefore the closest park for the residents to utilise. The 
contribution has been sought as it would provide additional benefits for the 
residents and staff members of the care home.   
 
Trees, Landscaping and Biodiversity 

 
6.41 Policy DMD80 seeks to protect trees of significant amenity or biodiversity value. 

Policy DMD81 sets out that developments must provide high quality landscaping 
that enhances the local environment and should add to the local character, benefit 
biodiversity, help mitigate the impacts of climate change and reduce water run off.  
 

6.42 The trees on the boundaries with Forty Hill and Myddelton Avenue provide 
significant amenity, screening and biodiversity benefits. Furthermore many of the 
trees on both boundaries but particularly Forty Hill are good quality trees that 
should be retained, for instance the Yew trees located along the boundary with 
Forty Hill. There are some trees however that are of poor quality and could be 
removed as they do not contribute to the visual amenity of the area. Replacement 
planting will be required to retain and enhance the tree screen and amenity 
character of the location.  

 
6.43 One of the main changes to the scheme included setting the building in from the 

boundary with Myddelton Avenue due to the impact on the existing trees and post 

Page 29



21 
 

development pressure. The proposal has been revised to address the original 
concerns raised by the Tree Officer. The majority of trees, and in particular the 
good quality trees are to be retained. This would ensure that the proposal would 
respect, preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area.  

 
6.44 A communal outdoor area would be provided for the residents to take advantage of 

in good weather.  
 
6.45 Several conditions would be attached to any grant of planning permission to 

ensure that the trees to be retained are adequately protected and the local 
environment is enhanced. 

 
 Sustainable Design and Construction 
 
6.46 Policy DMD49 states that all new development must achieve the highest 

sustainable design and construction standards having regard to technical feasibility 
and economic viability. An energy statement in accordance with Policies DMD49 
and 51 is required to demonstrate how the development has engaged with the 
energy hierarchy to maximise energy efficiency. An Energy Assessment and Low 
or Zero Carbon Feasibility Report was submitted with the application however the 
scheme has evolved and therefore an updated energy statement will be required 
that reflects the revised scheme.  

 
6.47  Policy 5.2 of the London Plan and Policy DMD51 of the DMD requires major 

development to achieve a 35% improvement over 2013 Building Regulations. The 
energy assessment concludes that there would be a reduction in carbon dioxide 
emissions of 12.5% which would not comply with policy which further supports the 
need for an updated energy statement.  

 
6.48  Policy DMD50 requires major residential development to achieve a BREEAM Multi-

residential or relevant equivalent rating of ‘Excellent’. The BREEAM UK New 
Construction 2014 scheme includes multi residential accommodation/ supported 
living facilities which comprises residential care homes. Due to economic viability a 
condition would be required to ensure that the proposal meets a minimum of 
BREEAM Very Good with a requirement to provide evidence if BREEAM Excellent 
cannot be achieved.   

 
6.49  Policy DMD52 all major development should connect to or contribute towards 

existing or planned decentralised energy networks (DEN) supplied by low or zero 
carbon energy. Proposals for major development which produce heat/ and or 

Page 30



22 
 

energy should contribute to the supply of decentralised energy networks unless it 
can be demonstrated that this is not technically feasible or economically viable. 
The proposed development is too far away to connect to the Ponders End Heat 
Network and there are no current plans to supply low carbon heating and hot water 
in this area due to the low density of development. Furthermore a decentralised 
heating system local to the development with CHP would not be economical for 
this type of development. Although a revised energy statement will need to be 
submitted, the energy statement that was submitted with the application 
recommends that a gas fired mirco CHP unit which provides 90% of the base hot 
water load is incorporated within the scheme.  

 
6.50  Policy DMD55 requires all development to maximise the use of roof and vertical 

surfaces for Low and Zero Carbon Technology / Living Walls / Green Roofs. A 
condition requiring a feasibility study of compliance with Policy DMD55 would be 
required.  

 
6.51  Several conditions relating to sustainable design and construction have been 

suggested to address relevant policies within section 8 – Tackling Climate Change 
of the DMD.  

 
Affordable Housing 
 

6.52 As set out in paragraph 4.2.4 of the DMD, it is not always feasible or desirable to 
achieve affordable housing targets as set out in the Enfield Local Plan when 
considering specialist forms of housing. Given the proposal is a care home that 
would fall within a C2 use rather than a scheme that would provide new residential 
units for extra care accommodation that would fall under a C3 use, the scheme is 
not subject to affordable housing.  

 
Planning Obligations 

 
6.53  In accordance with the S106 SPD and the comments received in respect of this 

application, the development will secure a travel plan monitoring fee of £3,620 
through a S106. 

 
CIL 

 
6.54  The proposal would fall within the Mayor’s CIL. The floor space of the existing 

building measures 1,422 square metres. The new care home would measure 3,833 
square metres and therefore there would be a net increase in floor space of 2,411 

Page 31



23 
 

square metres. The total CIL money payable would be: (£20/m2 x 2,411m2 x 
321)/274 = £56,491.31. 

 
6.55  The scheme would not be liable to the Enfield CIL as it only applies to C3 use 

classes.  
 
 
7.0 Conclusion 
 
7.1 The proposed scheme would provide a much needed care home in the London 

Borough of Enfield on a currently vacant plot of land. The scheme would not only 
meet the needs of the growing elderly population but also provide jobs. The 
scheme has been amended to ensure that it would not harm the character and 
appearance of the Forty Hill Conservation Area, maintains a greater number of 
existing trees that contribute to the character of the area and improves the layout of 
the site for the benefit of the future residents. The proposed scheme would not 
result in any harm to the character and appearance of the street scene or the 
residential amenity of neighbouring properties. Overall the proposal is considered 
acceptable and in accordance with relevant policies of the London Plan and the 
Enfield Local Plan. 
 

7.2 The detailed wording of all the required conditions has not yet been fixed although 
the issues to be addressed by conditions have been highlighted throughout this 
report and are summarised below. In this regard, Members are being asked in 
considering the officer recommendation to grant planning permission and to also 
grant delegated authority to officers to agree the final wording for these conditions. 

 
 
8.0  Recommendation 
 

That subject to the completion of a S106 agreement, the Head of Development 
Management/ the Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to GRANT planning 
permission subject to conditions.  

 
1. Time limit  
2. In accordance with plans  
3. Details of external finishing materials including samples and sample panels – 

details of brick bond, pointing, mortar mix, window details, window reveals, 
dormers, roof, rainwater goods, chimney stacks, canopy, window treatment/ living 
wall details to stair core   

4. Surfacing materials  

Page 32



24 
 

5. Details of enclosure including the boundary treatment to be introduced between the 
pedestrian access and the disabled parking bays  

6. Details of levels 
7. Piling method statement 
8. Access roads and junctions  
9. Pedestrian route details 
10. Disabled parking spaces – correct size 
11. Electric charging points  
12. Soft landscaping including replacement trees 
13. Notwithstanding information on plans revised bin store location needed and further 

details of the refuse store  
14. Cycle parking spaces  
15. Travel plan 
16. Wheel washing  
17. Construction traffic management plan  
18. Energy Performance Certificate 
19. Energy Statement  
20. BREEAM  
21. Green procurement plan 
22. Considerate Constructors Scheme 
23. Details of a written scheme of archaeological investigation  
24. Potable water  
25. Rainwater recycling system feasibility study 
26. SuDS Drainage Plan  
27. No clearance during birds nesting  
28. Biodiversity enhancements 
29. External lighting  
30. Green/ Brown roof/ living wall/ renewable technology feasibility study   
31. Tree protection plan  
32. Site waste management plan  
33. No additional fenestration  
34. Building to only be used as a C2 care home 

 

Page 33



-
11

/0
8/

17
O

rig
in

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

JB
JB

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

D
ra

w
n 

By
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r

t: 
01

32
5 

46
4 

11
1

e:
 s

tu
di

o@
ad

ga
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
.u

k
w

: w
w

w
.a

dg
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
.u

k

6 
Pi

on
ee

r C
ou

rt,
 D

ar
lin

gt
on

, D
L1

 4
W

D

C
lie

nt

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle

A3
 S

ca
le

A1
 S

ca
le

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

su
e

C
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

7 
AD

G
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
Lt

d

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

O
ak

la
nd

 P
rim

ec
ar

e

Pr
op

os
ed

 7
5 

Be
d 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e,

 B
rid

ge
 H

ou
se

Fo
rty

 H
ill,

 E
nf

ie
ld

Pr
op

os
ed

 G
ro

un
d 

Fl
oo

r P
la

n 
- C

ar
e 

H
om

e

1:
10

0

H
.1

7.
10

(0
0)

 4
H

PL
AN

N
IN

G

A
21

/0
8/

17
Bu

ild
in

g 
ou

tli
ne

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
JB

JB

B
05

/1
1/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

C
08

/1
1/

17
D

ra
w

in
g 

tit
le

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
JB

JB

D
15

/1
1/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 s

ui
t t

he
 e

le
va

tio
ns

JB
JB

E
08

/1
2/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 s

ui
t t

he
 tr

ee
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

F
25

/0
1/

18
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

G
09

/0
2/

18
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

H
02

/0
3/

18
C

or
ne

r w
in

do
w

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

la
rg

er
 a

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

O
ffi

ce
r

JB
JBPage 34



-
11

/0
8/

17
O

rig
in

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

JB
JB

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

D
ra

w
n 

By
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r

t: 
01

32
5 

46
4 

11
1

e:
 s

tu
di

o@
ad

ga
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
.u

k
w

: w
w

w
.a

dg
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
.u

k

6 
Pi

on
ee

r C
ou

rt,
 D

ar
lin

gt
on

, D
L1

 4
W

D

C
lie

nt

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle

A3
 S

ca
le

A1
 S

ca
le

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

su
e

C
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

7 
AD

G
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
Lt

d

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

O
ak

la
nd

 P
rim

ec
ar

e

Pr
op

os
ed

 7
5 

Be
d 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e,

 B
rid

ge
 H

ou
se

Fo
rty

 H
ill,

 E
nf

ie
ld

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
irs

t F
lo

or
 P

la
n 

- C
ar

e 
H

om
e

1:
10

0

H
.1

7.
10

(0
0)

 5
H

PL
AN

N
IN

G

A
21

/0
8/

17
Bu

ild
in

g 
ou

tli
ne

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
JB

JB

B
05

/1
1/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

C
08

/1
1/

17
D

ra
w

in
g 

tit
le

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
JB

JB

D
15

/1
1/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 s

ui
t t

he
 e

le
va

tio
ns

JB
JB

E
08

/1
2/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 s

ui
t t

he
 tr

ee
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

F
25

/0
1/

18
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

G
09

/0
2/

18
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

H
02

/0
3/

18
C

or
ne

r w
in

do
w

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

la
rg

er
 a

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

O
ffi

ce
r

JB
JBPage 35



-
11

/0
8/

17
O

rig
in

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

JB
JB

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

D
ra

w
n 

By
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r

t: 
01

32
5 

46
4 

11
1

e:
 s

tu
di

o@
ad

ga
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
.u

k
w

: w
w

w
.a

dg
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
.u

k

6 
Pi

on
ee

r C
ou

rt,
 D

ar
lin

gt
on

, D
L1

 4
W

D

C
lie

nt

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle

A3
 S

ca
le

A1
 S

ca
le

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

su
e

C
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

7 
AD

G
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
Lt

d

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

O
ak

la
nd

 P
rim

ec
ar

e

Pr
op

os
ed

 7
5 

Be
d 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e,

 B
rid

ge
 H

ou
se

Fo
rty

 H
ill,

 E
nf

ie
ld

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
ec

on
d 

Fl
oo

r P
la

n 
- C

ar
e 

H
om

e

1:
10

0

H
.1

7.
10

(0
0)

 6
H

PL
AN

N
IN

G

A
21

/0
8/

17
Bu

ild
in

g 
ou

tli
ne

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
JB

JB

B
05

/1
1/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

C
08

/1
1/

17
D

ra
w

in
g 

tit
le

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
JB

JB

D
15

/1
1/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 s

ui
t t

he
 e

le
va

tio
ns

JB
JB

E
08

/1
2/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 s

ui
t t

he
 tr

ee
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

F
25

/0
1/

18
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

G
09

/0
2/

18
Fl

oo
r p

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

JB
JB

H
02

/0
3/

18
C

or
ne

r w
in

do
w

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

la
rg

er
 a

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

O
ffi

ce
r

JB
JBPage 36



Bi
n

St
or

e

-
29

/0
1/

17
O

rig
in

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

JB
JB

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

D
ra

w
n 

By
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r

t: 
01

32
5 

46
4 

11
1

e:
 s

tu
di

o@
ad

ga
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
.u

k
w

: w
w

w
.a

dg
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
.u

k

6 
Pi

on
ee

r C
ou

rt,
 D

ar
lin

gt
on

, D
L1

 4
W

D

C
lie

nt

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle

A3
 S

ca
le

A1
 S

ca
le

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

su
e

C
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

7 
AD

G
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
Lt

d

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

O
ak

la
nd

 P
rim

ec
ar

e

Pr
op

os
ed

 7
5 

Be
d 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e,

 B
rid

ge
 H

ou
se

Fo
rty

 H
ill,

 E
nf

ie
ld

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
ite

 P
la

n

1:
20

0

H
.1

7.
10

(9
-) 

2
M

PL
AN

N
IN

G

A
28

/0
3/

17
La

yo
ut

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
se

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
cl

ie
nt

s 
co

m
m

en
ts

JB
JB

B
17

/0
7/

17
La

yo
ut

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t t
he

 tr
ee

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

co
m

m
en

ts
JB

JB

C
18

/0
7/

17
La

yo
ut

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ho

w
 1

2 
ap

ar
tm

en
ts

JB
JB

D
21

/0
8/

17
C

ar
e 

H
om

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

69
 b

ed
s.

JB
JB

E
04

/1
1/

17
La

yo
ut

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ffi

ce
rs

co
m

m
en

ts
JB

JB

F
15

/1
1/

17
Fl

oo
r p

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 s
ui

t t
he

 e
le

va
tio

ns
JB

JB

G
27

/1
1/

17
St

ai
rw

el
l c

or
ne

r o
n 

th
e 

Fo
rty

 H
ill 

ju
nc

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 u
pd

at
ed

JB
JB

H
05

/1
2/

17
La

yo
ut

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t t
he

 tr
ee

s
JB

JB

I
11

/1
2/

17
La

yo
ut

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t t
he

 tr
ee

s
JB

JB

J
27

/0
1/

18
La

yo
ut

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ffi

ce
rs

co
m

m
en

ts
JB

JB

K
05

/0
2/

18
La

yo
ut

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ffi

ce
rs

co
m

m
en

ts
JB

JB

L
12

/0
2/

18
La

yo
ut

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ffi

ce
rs

co
m

m
en

ts
JB

JB

M
02

/0
3/

18
Bi

n 
st

or
e 

la
yo

ut
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ad
ju

st
ed

JB
JBPage 37



Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

n 
C

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

n 
A

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

-
21

/0
8/

17
O

rig
in

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

JB
JB

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

D
ra

w
n 

By
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r

t: 
01

32
5 

46
4 

11
1

e:
 s

tu
di

o@
ad

ga
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
.u

k
w

: w
w

w
.a

dg
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
.u

k

6 
Pi

on
ee

r C
ou

rt,
 D

ar
lin

gt
on

, D
L1

 4
W

D

C
lie

nt

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle

A3
 S

ca
le

A1
 S

ca
le

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

su
e

C
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

7 
AD

G
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
Lt

d

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS

O
ak

la
nd

 P
rim

ec
ar

e

Pr
op

os
ed

 7
5 

Be
d 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e,

 B
rid

ge
 H

ou
se

Fo
rty

 H
ill,

 E
nf

ie
ld

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

ns
 1

 o
f 2

1:
10

0
1:

20
0

H
.1

7.
10

(2
1)

 1
E

PL
AN

N
IN

G

M
at

er
ia

l S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
:

R
oo

f F
in

is
h 

- N
at

ur
al

 S
la

te
W

in
do

w
s 

- P
ai

nt
ed

 ti
m

be
r s

lid
in

g 
sa

sh
 w

in
do

w
s

St
rin

ge
r a

nd
 S

ol
di

er
 C

ou
rs

e 
- R

ed
 b

ric
kw

or
k

Fa
sc

ia
s 

an
d 

So
ffi

ts
: P

ai
nt

ed
 ti

m
be

r
R

ai
nw

at
er

 G
oo

ds
 - 

Bl
ac

k 
U

-P
VC

 d
ee

p 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 g

ut
te

r a
nd

 d
ow

np
ip

es
Ba

lc
on

ie
s 

- 1
80

0m
m

 h
ig

h 
fu

lly
 g

la
ze

d 
ba

lc
on

ie
s

Ba
lc

on
y 

St
ee

lw
or

k 
- m

itr
ed

 c
or

ne
r j

un
ct

io
ns

Ba
lc

on
y 

po
st

 - 
St

ee
l c

ol
um

ns
 c

la
d 

w
ith

 h
ar

dw
oo

d

A
15

/1
1/

17
Pr

op
os

ed
 E

le
va

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

M
H

JB

M
at

er
ia

ls Br
ic

kw
or

k

Br
ic

kw
or

k

B
26

/1
1/

17
Pr

op
os

ed
 S

ou
th

 W
es

t E
le

va
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
fe

at
ur

e 
on

 th
e 

co
rn

er
M

H
JB

C
08

/1
2/

17
El

ev
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 a
cc

om
m

da
te

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
s

M
H

JB

D
08

/1
2/

17
El

ev
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 a
cc

om
m

da
te

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
s

M
H

JB

E
02

/0
3/

18
Fi

rs
t f

lo
or

 w
in

do
w

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d,

 R
W

P 
an

d 
ch

im
ne

ys
 h

av
e

be
en

 a
dd

ed
M

H
JBPage 38



Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

n 
H

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

n 
F

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

n 
E

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

n 
D

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

n 
B

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

D
ra

w
n 

By
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r

t: 
01

32
5 

46
4 

11
1

e:
 s

tu
di

o@
ad

ga
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
.u

k
w

: w
w

w
.a

dg
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
.u

k

6 
Pi

on
ee

r C
ou

rt,
 D

ar
lin

gt
on

, D
L1

 4
W

D

C
lie

nt

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle

A3
 S

ca
le

A1
 S

ca
le

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

su
e

C
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

7 
AD

G
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
Lt

d

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS

O
ak

la
nd

 P
rim

ec
ar

e

Pr
op

os
ed

 7
5 

Be
d 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e,

 B
rid

ge
 H

ou
se

Fo
rty

 H
ill,

 E
nf

ie
ld

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
le

va
tio

ns
 2

 o
f 2

1:
10

0
1:

20
0

H
.1

7.
10

(2
1)

 2
F

PL
AN

N
IN

G

M
at

er
ia

l S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
:

R
oo

f F
in

is
h 

- N
at

ur
al

 S
la

te
W

in
do

w
s 

- P
ai

nt
ed

 ti
m

be
r s

lid
in

g 
sa

sh
 w

in
do

w
s

St
rin

ge
r a

nd
 S

ol
di

er
 C

ou
rs

e 
- R

ed
 b

ric
kw

or
k

Fa
sc

ia
s 

an
d 

So
ffi

ts
: P

ai
nt

ed
 ti

m
be

r
R

ai
nw

at
er

 G
oo

ds
 - 

Bl
ac

k 
U

-P
VC

 d
ee

p 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 g

ut
te

r a
nd

 d
ow

np
ip

es
Ba

lc
on

ie
s 

- 1
80

0m
m

 h
ig

h 
fu

lly
 g

la
ze

d 
ba

lc
on

ie
s

Ba
lc

on
y 

St
ee

lw
or

k 
- m

itr
ed

 c
or

ne
r j

un
ct

io
ns

Ba
lc

on
y 

po
st

 - 
St

ee
l c

ol
um

ns
 c

la
d 

w
ith

 h
ar

dw
oo

d

M
at

er
ia

ls Br
ic

kw
or

k

Br
ic

kw
or

k

E
12

/0
2/

18
El

ev
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 a
cc

om
m

da
te

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
s

M
H

JB

-
21

/0
8/

17
O

rig
in

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

JB
JB

A
08

/0
9/

17
El

ev
at

io
ns

 u
pd

at
ed

M
H

JB

B
19

/0
9/

17
R

ec
ep

tio
n 

En
tra

nc
e 

Lo
bb

y 
ca

no
py

 o
m

itt
ed

 a
nd

 p
ar

ap
et

 a
dd

ed
M

H
JB

C
15

/1
1/

17
Pr

op
os

ed
 E

le
va

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

om
m

en
ts

M
H

JB

D
08

/1
2/

17
El

ev
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 a
cc

om
m

da
te

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
s

M
H

JB

F
02

/0
3/

18
Fi

rs
t f

lo
or

 w
in

do
w

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d,

 R
W

P 
an

d 
ch

im
ne

ys
 h

av
e

be
en

 a
dd

ed
M

H
JBPage 39



Pr
op

os
ed

 V
ie

w
 A

lo
ng

 M
yd

dl
et

on
 A

ve
nu

e 
(U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 V
ie

w
 A

lo
ng

 M
yd

dl
et

on
 A

ve
nu

e 
(R

es
tri

ct
ed

)

Ex
is

tin
g 

Vi
ew

 A
lo

ng
 M

yd
dl

et
on

 A
ve

nu
e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Bu
ild

in
g 

O
ut

lin
e

-
01

/0
9/

17
O

rig
in

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

JB
JB

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

D
ra

w
n 

By
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r

t: 
01

32
5 

46
4 

11
1

e:
 s

tu
di

o@
ad

ga
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
.u

k
w

: w
w

w
.a

dg
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
.u

k

6 
Pi

on
ee

r C
ou

rt,
 D

ar
lin

gt
on

, D
L1

 4
W

D

C
lie

nt

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle

A3
 S

ca
le

A1
 S

ca
le

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

su
e

C
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

7 
AD

G
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
Lt

d

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

O
ak

la
nd

 P
rim

ec
ar

e

Pr
op

os
ed

 7
5 

Be
d 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e,

 B
rid

ge
 H

ou
se

Fo
rty

 H
ill,

 E
nf

ie
ld

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
tre

et
 S

ce
ne

 E
le

va
tio

ns
 - 

M
yd

dl
et

on
 A

ve
nu

e

1:
12

5
1:

25
0

H
.1

7.
10

(2
1)

 4
E

PL
AN

N
IN

G

A
25

/1
1/

17
Pr

op
os

ed
 e

le
va

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
JB

JB

B
11

/1
2/

17
Pr

op
os

ed
 e

le
va

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
JB

JB

C
28

/0
1/

18
Pr

op
os

ed
 s

tre
et

sc
en

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t u
pd

at
ed

 la
yo

ut
s

JB
JB

D
12

/0
2/

18
Pr

op
os

ed
 s

tre
et

sc
en

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t u
pd

at
ed

 la
yo

ut
s

JB
JB

E
02

/0
3/

18
Pr

op
os

ed
 s

tre
et

sc
en

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t u
pd

at
ed

 la
yo

ut
s

JB
JBPage 40



-
01

/0
9/

17
O

rig
in

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

JB
JB

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

D
ra

w
n 

By
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r

t: 
01

32
5 

46
4 

11
1

e:
 s

tu
di

o@
ad

ga
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
.u

k
w

: w
w

w
.a

dg
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
.u

k

6 
Pi

on
ee

r C
ou

rt,
 D

ar
lin

gt
on

, D
L1

 4
W

D

C
lie

nt

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle

A3
 S

ca
le

A1
 S

ca
le

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

su
e

C
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

7 
AD

G
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
Lt

d

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

O
ak

la
nd

 P
rim

ec
ar

e

Pr
op

os
ed

 7
5 

Be
d 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e,

 B
rid

ge
 H

ou
se

Fo
rty

 H
ill,

 E
nf

ie
ld

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
tre

et
 S

ce
ne

 E
le

va
tio

ns
 - 

Fo
rty

 H
ill

1:
15

0

H
.1

7.
10

(2
1)

 5
D

PL
AN

N
IN

G

A
25

/1
1/

17
Pr

op
os

ed
 e

le
va

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
JB

JB

B
28

/0
1/

18
Pr

op
os

ed
 s

tre
et

sc
en

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t u
pd

at
ed

 la
yo

ut
s

JB
JB

C
12

/0
2/

18
Pr

op
os

ed
 s

tre
et

sc
en

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t u
pd

at
ed

 la
yo

ut
s

JB
JB

D
02

/0
3/

18
Pr

op
os

ed
 s

tre
et

sc
en

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

vi
se

d 
to

 s
ui

t u
pd

at
ed

 la
yo

ut
s

JB
JBPage 41



Page 42


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 20 FEBRUARY 2018
	4 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, REGENERATION AND PLANNING (REPORT NO.180)
	5 17/03925/FUL - BRIDGE HOUSE, 1 FORTY HILL, ENFIELD, EN2 9HT
	That subject to the completion of a S106 agreement, the Head of Development Management/ the Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions.


